
Agenda 
 

Human Resources Committee 
Jefferson County Courthouse 

320 S Main St,  Room 112 
Jefferson, WI  53549 

 
June 5, 2012 @ 8:00 a.m. 

 
Committee Members:  James Braughler, Greg David, Pamela Rogers, Jim Schroeder and Dick Schultz 

 
1. Call to order 
2. Roll call (establish a quorum) 
3. Certification of compliance with the Open Meetings Law 
4. Election of Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary positions 
5. Review of the Agenda 
6. Citizen comments 
7. Approval of April 17, 2012 minutes 
8. Communications 
9. Convene into closed session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statues Section 19.85 (1)(e), discussion and consideration 

of contract competiveness and negotiations  
a. Review of proposals for a classification/compensation study and selection method 
b. Interviews with potential firms to conduct a classification/compensation study (30 minutes each) 

i. Carlson Dettmann Associates (8:30 am) 
ii. The Waters Consulting Group, Inc (9:00 am) 
iii. Public Sector Personnel Consultants (9:30 am) 

c. Discus negotiating strategy 
10. Reconvene into open session for possible action regarding items discussed in closed session 
11. Discussion, selection and recommendation of a final candidate to conduct a County-wide Classification and 

Compensation Study for Jefferson County (excluding represented law enforcement) 
12. Review of the Human Resources 2011 Annual Report 
13. Review of Retirement Recognitions for the second quarter, 2012 
14. Request by County Administrator to reclassify the current WIC Project Nutritionist incumbent at the Health 

department (as recommended by Carlson Dettmann Associates), the current Systems Analyst incumbent in MIS to a 
Senior Systems Analyst, and the current Assistant Superintendent at the Highway Department to an Operations 
Superintendent, as well as postpone all other reclassification requests to be completed with the 
classification/compensation study, or if study is delayed or rejected, to complete the reclassification requests in the 
fall of 2012 to implement January 1, 2013. 

15. Review and recommendation of the repeal and recreation of the Civil Service Ordinance, specifically addressing the 
hiring procedure for the Chief Deputy position 

16. Discussion and possible recommendation to change the maximum age a dependent may have dental coverage, to 
mirror the age established by State and Federal regulations for health insurance, effective 1/1/13 

17. Discussion and possible recommendation of a pay adjustment for non represented employees, including former 
AFSCME union positions/employees for 2012 and/or 2013 

18. Review of Personnel Ordinances and consideration of additional ordinance to address the use of company time or 
resources for political activity  

19. Report from Human Resources Director regarding vacant position and emergency help requests, new/change in 
position requests for 2013, reclassification requests and new hires starting above minimum 

20. Set the 2012-2013 Human Resources Committee meeting schedule and agenda items for the next meeting 
21. Adjournment 

Next scheduled meeting:  June 19, 2012 @ 8:30am. 
 

The Committee may discuss and/or take action on any item specifically listed on the agenda 
 

Individuals requiring special accommodations for attendance at the meeting should contact the County Administrator 24 
hours prior to the meeting at 920-674-7101 so appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 

































































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jefferson County, Wisconsin 

Proposal Response to 2012 Classification 
and Compensation Study and Analysis 

May 15, 2012 
 
 
 
 

The Waters Consulting Group, Inc. 
5050 Quorum Drive, Suite 625 

Dallas, Texas  75254 
Phone  800.899.1669 

Fax  972.481.1951 
www.watersconsulting.com

THE WATERS 
CONSULTING 
GROUP, INC. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
May 15, 2012 
 
Terri M. Palm, Human Resources Director 
Jefferson County Courthouse 
320 S. Main St. 
Jefferson, WI 53549 
 
Re:  Proposal for Classification and Compensation Study 
 
Dear Terri: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal describing our approach in assisting Jefferson County with 
its classification and compensation study.  Based on the County’s RFP, The Waters Consulting Group, Inc. (WCG) 
has developed a customized work plan that meets the scope of services, as noted.  This work plan is committed 
to ensuring a fair, accountable, credible, and systematic approach to the development of a classification and 
compensation plan that attracts and retains qualified workers who will be paid equitable salaries; provides fair 
salaries for all workers, including the ability to recognize job performance as part of the pay plan; enables the 
County to maintain a competitive position with other comparable counties within the same geographic area; 
provides a compensation plan that is easy to understand and administer; and establishes practices and policies 
to meet the aforementioned objectives in future years.   
 
To that end, the County seeks the assistance of a qualified firm to conduct a comprehensive classification and 
compensation  study  of  all  positions  (excluding  represented  law  enforcement),  which  is  inclusive  of  a  job 
evaluation  process  to  ensure  internal  equity;  comprehensive  analysis  of  available  salary  survey  data;  the 
development of wage  scales  for each position; and  recommendations  regarding  compensation best practices 
(including  a  discussion  of  performance  management,  as  well  as  an  anticipated  cost  proposal  for  the 
development of  a performance  appraisal plan).   WCG has provided  the  following  summary of our proposed 
technical approach, and would be pleased to further collaborate with the County to modify it, as required.            

Project  Planning  and  Administration:    Identify  underlying  issues  and  challenges,  agree  upon  project 
responsibilities, deliverables, and schedule. 

Employee and Management Communication Sessions:   Communicate with  identified  stakeholder groups 
the  basic  project methodology  and  deliverables.    Identify  other  available  opportunities  for meaningful 
communication and involvement.      

Develop and  Implement a  Job Evaluation System:   Provide a  comprehensive evaluation of Couunty  jobs 
based on core content, minimum qualifications, and the actual responsibilities of the position (as described 
in the questionnaires collected from employees).     

Salary,  Benefits,  and    Pay  Practices  Survey:   Develop  and  distribute  a  custom  salary,  benefits,  and  pay 
policies survey.  Compile and analyze respondent information.       

Design of Updated Compensation Structure and Incremental Implementation Cost Scenarios:  Create new 
base  compensation  structures,  inclusive  of  geographic market  differentials  (as  appropriate)  and  provide 
implementation cost scenarios.   

THE WATERS 
CONSULTING 
GROUP, INC. 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 3 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

Final  Report:   Document  the  project methodology  and  findings,  and  provide  training  for  utilization  and 
continued maintenance of the compensation system.   

Post‐Implementation Support:  Ongoing assistance with maintenance of the new system, including addition 
of new positions to the compensation plans; review of existing positions due to reorganizations, changes in 
essential  functions, etc.;  and  an update of  salary  survey data  to determine movement  in  relation  to  the 
newly‐developed  salary  structures  and  updates  to  the  structures  at  the  end  of  the  first  year  following 
implementation.   

While our proposed methodology is based on industry best practices and has been successfully implemented in 
public organizations across the United States, including those of a similar size and complexity to Jefferson 
County, we understand the importance of thoughtfully and carefully considering the culture, climate, and 
strengths of our clients and would enthusiastically partner with the identified stakeholders in the completion of 
our analysis.   
 
Successfully completing a project of this nature involves much more than providing the County’s anticipated 
deliverables in a timely manner.  Much of the outcome lies in the relationships we build with the identified 
stakeholders, designated staff, and the full confidence of everyone in the results and recommendations.  This 
can only come from a highly‐qualified team that consistently delivers results.  I am confident that, upon review 
of our client list, letters of recommendation, and speaking with our references, you will see that we can be that 
partner for Jefferson County. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the enclosed proposal, please contact me at (214) 466‐2443, my direct line, 
or by email at tlcox@watersconsulting.com.  I am authorized to commit the firm and will serve as the official 
contact person regarding all matters concerning this proposal.     
 
We look forward to meeting with the Evaluation Committee to present our experience and qualifications in 
person. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
TL Cox 
Director of Consulting Services 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 4 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

SECTION A – INTRODUCTION 
OFFICE  LOCATION  

Name:  The Waters Consulting Group, Inc. 

Location:  5050 Quorum Drive, Suite 625, Dallas, Texas 75254 

Phone:  (972) 481‐1950           Facsimile:  (972) 481‐1951 

Website:  www.watersconsulting.com 

Additional Offices:  Austin, TX; Cleveland, OH; and Denver, CO     
 

POINT  OF  CONTACT  FOR  RFP  CORRESPONDENCE  

Name:  TL Cox 

Title:  Director of Consulting Services 

Phone:  (214) 466‐2443           Mobile:  (214) 601‐7170 

Fax:  (972) 481‐1951            E‐Mail:  tlcox@watersconsulting.com    

PRINCIPAL  

President and Founder, Rollie O. Waters, is viewed on a national level as one of the foremost authorities in 

compensation and performance management system design  for  the public sector.   He has spoken before 

such organizations as the American Management Association, Southern Methodist University, the University 

of  Maryland,  California  Institute  of  Technology,  the  Texas  Municipal  League  (TML),  the  International 

Personnel Management Association (IPMA‐HR), several international companies based in Great Britain, and 

various U.S. public sector agencies and organizations.  



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 5 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

SECTION B – EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS 
BRIEF  DESCRIPTION  OF  THE  ORGANIZATION  

The  Waters  Consulting  Group,  Inc.  (WCG)  is  a  Dallas‐based  management  consulting  firm  specializing  in 

compensation,  classification,  job  analysis,  job  evaluation,  performance management,  organizational 

analysis,  succession planning, Human Resource  audits,  and  executive  search  consulting.   With more  than  30 

years  of  experience, WCG  has  emerged  as  a  leader  in  evaluating,  designing,  and  installing  state‐of‐the‐art 

compensation and human resource systems.   We have experience  in all areas of human resources  in both the 

public and private sectors.     

The  firm was  founded  in 1976 under  the name of Waters, Trego, and Davis and was  incorporated  in 1988  in 

Texas under the name of The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.  WCG has approximately 15 employees.    



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 6 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

EXPERIENCE  AND  QUALIFICATIONS  OF  PROPOSED  STAFF  MEMBERS  

WCG uses a project  team approach  for providing  classification and  compensation  services.   This allows us  to 

effectively and efficiently manage workloads and assign different members of our  consulting  staff  to project 

phases  in accordance with  their  related professional experience.   The  following  is a brief biography  for each 

team member specializing in HR consulting.  

Ruth Ann Eledge, SPHR 
Vice President and Senior Consultant 
Ruth Ann Eledge started working with WCG in 2000 and is the Vice President of the Consulting Services 
Division.  In this role, she leads and oversees many of our HR studies and compensation projects and works 
closely with the entire consulting team to ensure on‐time delivery while meeting the quality requirements of 
our clients.   
Ruth Ann has more than 24 years of public sector experience with the City of Austin, Texas.  Before joining the 
WCG team in 2000, she served as the City’s Director of Human Resources and Civil Service.  Under Ruth Ann’s 
leadership, the City of Austin received an A+ rating from Governing Magazine for having a top Human Resource 
Department in 2000, an honor given only to two cities nationwide.  Ruth Ann has worked closely with and 
supported various boards and commissions for the City of Austin, Texas, including the Civil Service Commission, 
Human Rights Commission, Mayor’s Committee for Person’s with Disabilities, and the City Council Affirmative 
Action Subcommittee. 

AREAS  OF  EXPERTISE  

 Total Compensation and Classification System Design and Development 

 Position Description Analysis 

 Point Factor Job Evaluation System Design and Installation 

 Market Surveys and Analysis 

 Benefits Surveys and Reporting 

 Salary Administration Audits 

 Employee Opinion Surveys 

 Compensation Philosophy Design 

 FLSA Analysis 

 EEO Analysis 

 Expert Witness Services in the area of compensation and classification for municipalities 

PROFESSIONAL  ACCOMPLISHMENTS  AND  EDUCATION  

Ruth Ann received her master’s degree (MPA) from Southwest Texas State University and her bachelor’s degree 
from the University of Texas at Austin. 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 7 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

 

TL COX 
Director of Consulting Services 
TL Cox serves as Director of Consulting Services for WCG’s Consulting Services Division since 2008.  In this role, 
he assists in developing custom human resources and compensation‐related programs to meet our client’s 
strategic goals and philosophies.  Before joining WCG’s consulting team, TL worked in program management in 
the aerospace industry, where he was responsible for client services, procurement and supplier development, 
and budget/contractual oversight for both commercial and military customers.  He also served independently 
for Tri‐County Indian Nations Community Development Corporation, completing legislative analysis, research, 
and proposal writing assignments, ensuring his assigned tasks represented appropriately Tri‐County’s overall 
mission.  Previously, TL was employed in Information Technology with the Chickasaw Nation Division of 
Commerce, and in training/curriculum development for telecommunications and consumer electronics 
clientele. 

AREAS  OF  EXPERTISE  

 Total Compensation and Classification System Design and Development 

 Position Description Analysis 

 Point Factor Job Evaluation System Design and Installation 

 Market Surveys and Analysis 

 Benefits Surveys and Reporting 

 Job Description and Job Family Development 

 Employee Training and Orientation 

 Organizational Analysis 

PROFESSIONAL  ACCOMPLISHMENTS  AND  EDUCATION  

TL attended Southeastern Oklahoma State University in Durant, Oklahoma, earning a bachelor’s degree 
(summa cum laude) in political science and communication, and the University of Texas at Arlington, where he 
completed a Master’s of Public Administration. 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 8 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

   

JOYCE C. POWELL, CCP   
Senior Consultant 
Joyce C. Powell serves as a Senior Consultant in HR and compensation systems with WCG since 2004.  In this 
role, she assists in developing custom compensation programs to meet our client’s strategic goals and 
philosophy.  Joyce is a certified compensation professional with more than 15 years of hands‐on experience.  
Before joining the WCG team in 2004, she served as an independent consultant working for private and public 
sector organizations in a variety of industries including  
energy and oil, healthcare, information services, defense, insurance, transportation, and education.  Prior to 
consulting, she also served as the Supervisor of Compensation and Human Resources for a subsidiary of a 
Fortune 500 company. 
Joyce also has extensive experience in developing affirmative action plans and conducting custom HR analysis 
studies.  She also is experienced at conducting HR system reviews, FLSA reviews, compensation reviews, market 
analyses, and internal equity studies. 

AREAS  OF  EXPERTISE  

 Compensation Market Surveys and Competitive Analysis 

 HR Legal Compliance (EEO/Affirmative Action Analysis, Workforce Availability/Utilization Analysis, FLSA 
Reviews, and Public Utility Commission Reports on Workforce Diversity and Historically Underutilized 
Businesses) 

 Job Analysis and Classification Review 

 Point Factor Job Evaluation System Design and Implementation 

 Job Information Questionnaire and Job Classification Survey Development 

 Job Description and Job Family Development 

 Compensation Structure Development and Implementation 

 Internal Equity Studies 

 Performance Evaluation System Development 

 Compensation Department and Salary Administration Reviews 

 HR Policies and Procedures 

 Salary Administration Guidelines 

 Incentive and Alternative Pay Program Design 

PROFESSIONAL  ACCOMPLISHMENTS  AND  EDUCATION  

Joyce  attended West  Texas A&M University  in Canyon,  Texas.    She  is  a Certified Compensation  Professional 

(CCP) through WorldatWork (formerly the American Compensation Association).   



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 9 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

STRENGTHS   IN  THE  MARKET  PLACE  

WCG has worked closely with public sector organizations across the U.S. to provide solutions tailored to their 

needs and specific climates.  The WCG HR Consulting team is composed of members that have a wide range of 

experience,  in  both  the  private  and  public  sectors,  and  knowledge  of  laws  and  regulations  covering  public 

employees.    The  sample  client  list  below  highlights  some  of  the  organizations  for whom WCG  has  provided 

compensation consulting services over the past few years.  Additional information is available upon request.   

2008:  

 Bandera County, Texas – Compensation Study 

 Charlotte Housing Authority (Charlotte, North Carolina) – Comprehensive Compensation and 
Classification Study and Development of Job Descriptions 

 Cities of West University Place and Bellaire – Compensation Study and Development of Job Descriptions 

 City of Flagstaff, Arizona – Compensation Study 

 City of Goodyear, Arizona – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study 

 City of Lancaster, Texas – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study  

 City of Lynnwood, Washington – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study  

 City of Missouri City, Texas – Market Update 

 Comal County, Texas – Market Update 

 Corpus Christi Regional Transit Authority – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study 

 Liberty County, Texas – Compensation Study 

 North Carolina League of Municipalities – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study and 
Development of Job Descriptions 

 Sacramento Regional Transit District – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study and 
Development of Job Descriptions 

 Superior Court, Yuma County, Arizona – Compensation Study 

 Village of Glenview, Illinois – Market Update 
2009: 

 City of Fountain, Colorado – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study  

 City of Liberty, Texas – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study  

 City of Missouri City, Texas – Market Update 

 City of Mont Belvieu, Texas – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study 

 City of Oklahoma City, Oklahoma – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study and 
Development of Job Descriptions 

 City of Tyler, Texas – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study  

 City of West University Place – Market Update 

 Jefferson County, Colorado – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study and Development 
of Job Descriptions 

 Lamar University (Beaumont, Texas) Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study and 
Development of Job Descriptions 

 Northeast Community College – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study and 
Development of Job Descriptions 

 Terrebonne Parish, Louisiana – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study  

 Texas Municipal Power Agency (Bryan, Texas) – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 10 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

 Village of Glenview, Illinois – Market Update 
2010: 

 City of Greenville, North Carolina – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study and 
Development of Job Descriptions 

 City of Lynnwood Washington – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study 

 City of San Marcos, California – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study and 
Development of Job Descriptions 

 City of Thornton, Colorado – Compensation Study 

 City of West University Place, Texas – Market Update 

 City of Wheat Ridge, Colorado – Compensation Study 

 Comal County, Texas – Compensation Study 

 Kansas City, Kansas Housing Authority – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study and 
Development of Job Descriptions 

 Northeast Community College – Expanded Benefits Study 

 Pointe Coupee Parish, Louisiana – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study 

 Tarrant County 9‐1‐1, Texas – Market Study 

 Village of Winnetka, Illinois – Compensation, Benefits, and Pay Practices Study 
2011: 

 City of Charlotte, North Carolina – Information Technology Classification Study 

 City of Crowley, Texas – Classification and Compensation Study 

 City of Farmers Branch, Texas ‐ Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study  

 City of Greenville, South Carolina – Comprehensive Classification and Compensation Study 

 City of Morgantown, West Virginia – Compensation Study 

 City of Overland Park, Kansas – Compensation Study 

 City of Portland, Texas – Comprehensive Classification and Compensation Study 

 City of Simpsonville, South Carolina – Comprehensive Compensation Study (Fire Department only) and 
Development of Job Descriptions 

 City of Sugar Land, Texas – Compensation Survey 

 City of Thibodaux, Louisiana – Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study and Development 
of Job Descriptions 

 City of Upper Arlington, Ohio – Comprehensive Compensation Study 

 Fire and Police Pension Association of Colorado – Compensation Study 

 Gillespie County, Texas ‐ Compensation Study 

 Greenville Utilities Commission, North Carolina – Strategic Plan for the Human Resources Department 

 Guadalupe Brazos River Authority – Compensation Study 

 Harford Community College, Maryland – Job Classification Analysis Study and Development of Job 
Descriptions 

 Jacksonville Port Authority (JAXPORT), Florida – Job Evaluation and Compensation Assessment Study 

 Montrose County, Colorado – Classification and Compensation Study 

 Orange Water and Sewer District, North Carolina – Employee Classification and Compensation Study 

 San Miguel Electric Cooperative – Compensation Study 

 Toho Water Corporation, Florida – Technical Salary Survey 

 Village of Glenview, Illinois – Market Update 
Our strength in the market is perhaps best demonstrated by the following letters of recommendation attesting 

to the quality and timeliness of our work. 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 11 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 12 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 13 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 14 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 15 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

  



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 16 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 17 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

PROFESSIONAL  REFERENCES  

Jefferson County, Colorado 
100 Jefferson County Parkway 
Golden, Colorado  80401  
(520) 488-4206 
pmaher922@comcast.net  
PAT MAHER, FORMER DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

Project:  Design and installation of Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study for all employees.  
Conduct comprehensive salary survey of appropriate public and private sector.  Develop a pay and classification 
plan, job evaluation method.   

Comal County, Texas 
150 N. Seguin 
New Braunfels, TX 78130 
 (830)643‐5859 
Mr. Robert Grazioli, Director, Human Resources 
 hrsrjg@co.comal.tx.us 

Project: Job Evaluation and Market Survey 

Montrose County, CO 
1845 S. Townsend Avenue 
Montrose, CO 
970‐252‐5046 
chuffman@montrosecounty.net  
Mr. Chad Huffman, Human Resources Director 

Project:  Comprehensive Classification and Compensation Study and Development of a Compensation 
Philosophy. 
Kansas City Housing Authority, Kansas City, Kansas 
124 North 9th Street 
Kansas City, Kansas 66101 
(913) 279‐3431 
jRandle@kckha.org  
MS. JACKIE RANDAL, EXECUTIVE SERVICES MANAGER 

Project:  Development of job descriptions, pay comparability study, a job evaluation and compensation system 
including a wage and salary analysis.   

City of Greenville/Greenville Utilities Commission, North Carolina 
Greenville Utilities Commission  City of Greenville, NC 
P.O. Box 1847  200 West Fifth Street 
Greenville, NC 28783‐1847  Greenville, NC 28734 
(252) 551‐1574  (252)329‐4432 
MR. TONY CANNON, GENERAL MANAGER/CEO    MR. THOM MOTON, ACTING CITY MANAGER 
cannont@guc.com          tmoton@greenvillenc.gov   

Project:  Comprehensive Classification and Compensation Study with approximately 1200 employees in 414 
classified and non‐classified positions.  Develop Strategic Plan for Greenville Utilities Commission Human 
Resources Department.   
City of San Marcos, California 
1 Civic Center Drive, San Marcos, CA 92069  
(760) 744‐1050 X 3121  



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 18 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

DFrench@san‐marcos.net  
MS. DONNA FRENCH, HUMAN RESOURCES/RISK DIRECTOR 

Project:  Classification and Compensation Study, Job Description Development, Pay Practices Analysis.  

Village of Glenview, Illinois 
1225 Waukegan Road, Glenview, IL  60025  
(847) 904‐4370 
THILEMAN@GLENVIEW.IL.US  
MR. TODD HILEMAN, VILLAGE MANAGER 

Project:  Design and installation of Comprehensive Compensation and Classification Study for all employees 

Village‐wide in a Bargaining Unit environment; Job Evaluation and Market Update; HR Audit.   
Harford Community College, Bel Air, Maryland  
401 Thomas Run Road 
Bel Air, MD  21015 
(443) 412‐2416 
CHickson@Harford.edu  
Ms. Cheryl Hickson, Director for Human Resources and Employee Development 

Project:  Job Classification Analysis, Salary Survey, and Development of Job Descriptions.   
City of Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
420 W. Main, Suite 110 
Oklahoma City, OK 73012 
(405) 297‐2530 
monica.coleman@okc.gov  
MS. MONICA COLEMAN, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

Project:  Comprehensive Compensation/Classification and Benefits Study for all employees citywide. 

City of Thibodaux, Louisiana 
310 West Second St. 
P.O. Box 5418 
Thibodaux, Louisiana 70302 
 (985) 448‐5848 
dclause@ci.thibodaux.la.us  
MR. DONALD (DONNY) CLAUSE, HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 

Project:  Comprehensive Classification and Compensation Study and Development of Job Descriptions. 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 19 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

SPECIALIZED  EXPERIENCE  AND  TECHNICAL  COMPETENCE  

The Waters Consulting Group, Inc. has included in the “Strengths in the Market Place” section a partial list of the 
organizations  for whom  classification  and  compensation  services have been  conducted  (over 100  since 2005 
alone).  The following pages contain summaries that exemplify our firm’s experience with similar projects: 

Client: Jefferson County, Colorado 

The Waters Consulting Group was asked to complete a comprehensive study, in an aggressive time frame, that 

included: 

 Development  of  a  customized  point  factor  job  evaluation  system  including  modify  wording  of  job 

evaluation factor level definitions to match the position description questionnaires the County has used 

to collect classification information. 

 A review of  the current broad band structure and determination,  through point  factor  job evaluation, 

the  actual  number  of  class  positions  needed.    This  required  the  review  of  each  position  description 

questionnaire  (2,800)  and  a  through  point  factor  analysis  to  create  a  reasonable distribution of  jobs 

within grades based on compensable factor measurement, as opposed to whole job ranking (currently in 

use). 

 Creation of a hierarchy of  job grades based on  the Point Factor  Job Evaluation process  for both non‐

exempt and exempt positions. 

 Recommendation of an alternative job evaluation plans for County needs, (i.e., legal). 

 Inclusion of the Sheriff’s Office non‐sworn positions and Library positions in the Job Evaluation process 

using current job descriptions. 

 Verification  of  internal  equity  and  completion  of  compensable  factor  scoring  and  the  resulting  job 

ranges. The resulting scores were validated with application of salary survey information that took into 

consideration external equity. Strong quality control procedures were established to assure accurate job 

matching as well as point factor evaluations.  

 Completion of a comprehensive market survey  including the  identification of benchmark organizations 

and benchmark positions to be used in the salary survey. 

 Compilation of private and public sector data from WCG sources and County survey sources for market 

comparisons only and not for structure development. 

 Analysis of market data for each benchmark position by public sector, private sector and all data, with 

market comparisons based on acceptable compensation practices and County needs.  

 Summarize market comparisons by employee group. 

 Development of new base compensation plans and pay  structures based on market  survey and point 

factor job evaluation results to satisfy the County’s needs with multiple pay structures for Non‐Exempt, 

Exempt, Sworn, Executive, and others as required (District Attorney’s Office).   

 Development  of  an  implementation  plan  that  identifies  any  pay  adjustments  to  proposed  pay  range 

minimum as well as other adjustments to address compression. 

 Conduct FLSA reviews and provide documentation of results and WCG opinions 

 Development of Salary Administration Policy Manual. 

 Training for Human Resources staff on Job Evaluation process and maintenance of system. 

 Completion of a Lilly Ledbetter Audit to determine impact of the  study based on proposed structure 

 Formalized appeals process to address point the factor Job Evaluation system. 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 20 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

 Onsite meetings  with  Board  of  County  Commissioners,  County  elected  and  appointed  officials  and 

County Administrator, as required. 

Client: The City of Greenville and the Greenville Utilities Commission 

The City of Greenville  and  the Greenville Utilities Commission  are  two  separate  entities  and operate  as  two 

separate organizations.   The Greenville Utilities  is owned by  the  citizens of Greenville, but operates under  a 

separate charter issued by the North Carolina General Assembly. The two organizations are connected through a 

formal agreement that establishes the relationship and their governing boards meet jointly as needed to discuss 

common issues.  The City Manager is a member of the Commission’s eight‐member Board and the City Council 

approves all Board members.  This joint project to conduct a comprehensive compensation study was funded by 

both  entities  and  has  included  approximately  1200  employees  in  over  350  job  titles.    The  challenge  in  this 

project has been to work with both governing boards to meet their respective needs and maintain the desired 

consistency in their proposed systems.  The following components are included in the scope of the project: 

 A formalized compensation philosophy which identifies target markets and supports desired position in 

relation to the target markets. 

 A formalized methodology to establish and maintain classification structure. 

 Extensive analysis of  job documentation  to ensure a  classification  system  that  is  consistently applied 

across both organizations and provides internal equity in job titling.  

 A  standardized  instrument  to demonstrate  job  specifications which are  legally  compliant  and  include 

realistic and updated minimum qualifications. 

 A comprehensive market review to establish the desired relationship with market data and determine 

the competiveness of benefits offerings. 

 An  in‐depth  review of  total  compensation  to both public  and private  sector,  calculating  the  value of 

benefits offerings, base compensation, and  total compensation.   Extensive analysis was completed  to 

calculate the individual offering monetary value and total compensation.  

 An audit of the City’s compliance with federal regulations in both policy and practice. 

 An implementation plan for effectively transitioning into the proposed compensation system, including 

identification of  impact on employee pay, communication of the new system, and management of the 

established appeals process.   

 Facilitation of multiple  joint meetings of  the Board and Council  for  the  two organizations  to establish 

policy and direction for the project. 

 A  comprehensive  communication  plan  that  provides  a  series  of  communications  to  all  managers, 

supervisors, and employees. 

 Training of staff to ensure future maintenance, sustainability and a strong understanding of all program 

components. 
 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 21 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

SECTION C – APPROACH/METHODS USED TO PERFORM 
THE PROJECT 
 

RESPONSE  TO  SCOPE  OF  SERVICES  

As noted in the RFP – the County is seeking the assistance of a qualified partner to conduct a classification and 

compensation  study  that  includes a detailed  job analysis and evaluation; a  comprehensive  review of  internal 

equity and external competitiveness; and guidelines and tools for ongoing maintenance.               

WCG has worked extensively with public sector organizations, including those of a similar size and complexity to 

Jefferson County, and has proposed a work plan and corresponding professional  fee structure  that meets  the 

Scope of  Services,  as noted.   Our  customized  approach  shall  include  an  examination of  the County’s overall 

classification  and  compensation methodologies;  a  review of  the  individual  components  (i.e.  the market data 

sources, survey instrument, benchmark positions, etc.) and their relationship to one another; meetings with key 

stakeholders (such as the County’s Leadership and employees); and implementation support.  The response that 

follows represents WCG’s understanding of the deliverables to be provided and may be further refined to best 

suit the needs of the County. 

Project Planning and Administration 

The  initial  phase  of  the work  plan  includes  time  for  in‐depth,  on‐site  strategy meetings with  the  County  in 

addition  to necessary  time  to support  the ongoing administration of  the project.   During  the project planning 

phase, WCG’s Project Manager(s) and the County’s Project Team will meet to discuss the objectives and Scope 

of Services outlined in the RFP.  It has been our experience that, during this process, our clients can more fully 

elaborate on  the underlying  challenges prompting  the  study, which may  lead  to  a discussion of  alternate or 

optional methodologies.   WCG will be prepared  to  facilitate  at  the  “kick off” meeting  a  review of  the  initial 

project budget to ensure it addresses both the stated and unstated needs of the County in a thoughtful and cost 

effective manner.  It is anticipated that this meeting will take place over a one day period and will begin with the 

project‐planning phase and will end with an overview of all agreed upon project goals, forms, and timelines.     

It  is  also  WCG’s  practice  to  provide  ongoing  communications  with  our  clients  to  identify  critical  project 

milestones and ensure the efficient delivery of services in support of the approved budget and schedule.  WCG 

will hold (in addition to the on‐site meetings discussed in this proposal) periodic status updates via GoToMeeting 

(i.e. a “teleconference”).   

This first phase also involves the collection of essential data, including:   

 A comprehensive employee compensation download including date of hire, time in current job, current 

rate of pay, current direct and indirect benefit costs by employee, special pay allocations and other total 

compensation related data; 

 Personnel rules and regulations; 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 22 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

 Organizational charts; 

 Job descriptions;  

 Current Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) designation reports; and 

 Other information, such as Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) demographics, that is necessary to 

conduct a successful audit of your existing systems.  

Upon receipt of this information, WCG will upload the County’s existing compensation system(s) into our 

proprietary Web‐based platform PayDesigner©, which will enable us to conduct an audit to identify the breadth 

and depth of any deficiencies.  WCG will discuss the findings with the County, including those that will be 

addressed within the compensation study, and would be pleased to discuss any necessary amendments to the 

approved Scope of Services to address others uncovered during this assessment.          

Once WCG’s consulting team has an in‐depth understanding of current methodologies and the goals of 

elected/appointed officials and the County’s executive team, we will develop a compensation philosophy in 

conjunction with the County.  This compensation philosophy will be reviewed and modified (as required).  The 

compensation philosophy will provide guidance during the remainder of the study, including the purpose, goals, 

and objectives for the compensation program, market definition, and pay administration policy across all 

systems and will be treated as “work in progress” as needed changes are identified.  If there is a need to work 

with appointed and elected officials to assist in adoption of this philosophy, either through formal action by a 

governing body or administrative direction, WCG will conduct workshops and/or facilitate meetings (these 

additional days onsite are priced as an optional/variable services and are not included in the base professional 

fee structure).  One option that has proven successful in educating people of the challenges in 

classification/compensation system administration and the importance of a clearly articulated compensation 

philosophy is WCG’s “Compensation 101” workshop.  This popular session generally includes:   

 Characteristics of an Effective Compensation Program 

 Equity Issues in Wage and Salary Administration 

 Number of Pay Structures 

 Job Evaluation Types 

 Point Factor Job Evaluation 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 23 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

 Grading Jobs 

 Labor Market Definition 

 Benchmark Job Selection 

 Market Analysis 

 Plotting and Reviewing Survey Results 

 Anatomy of a Pay Structure 

 Sample Consumer Price Index Comparisons 

 Advantages and Disadvantages of Various Pay Systems (Step, Merit, Performance‐Based, etc.) 

 Wage and Salary Administration 

 New Trends in Compensation 

Employee and Management Communication Sessions 

Our  experience  has  shown  that  it  is  critical  to  provide  opportunities  for  meaningful  participation  by  all 

employees in a project of this nature.  Our approach involves making informative presentations to individuals at 

all  levels within  the organization.   This helps manage expectations and ensure a consistent message about 1) 

what is included in the study, 2) the timeline, and 3) what the anticipated level of involvement is. 

It is also during this time that we develop (with the County’s input) and review (with employees and managers) 

the customized forms that they will be asked to complete in order to provide documentation of all County jobs.     

The customized Job Description Questionnaire (JDQ) will be distributed and employees given an in‐depth review 

regarding  its accurate and  full completion.   The  JDQ’s provide  information about each position  in  the County 

that may be utilized to ensure good matches to benchmark organizations’ positions (the market study) and  in 

the job evaluation process to determine the internal value of each job.   

Managers/Supervisors will be asked to complete a Job Evaluation Manual (JEM) on each classification title under 

their supervision.  This provides their view of the minimum requirements of the job (education and experience) 

and other job‐related knowledge, skills, and abilities. 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 24 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

During  the  communication  sessions, WCG will also provide a Toll Free  telephone number  specifically  for  the 

County  that  will  be  used  to  collect  and  answer  project‐related  questions  and  comments.    In  addition,  a 

designated  email  address  (JeffersonCountyWI‐Project@watersconsulting.com)  will  be  available  for  all 

employees, staff, and management as another form of communication.      

We typically conduct separate sessions with supervisors and managers in order to provide a forum for discussion 

of specific issues they face.  They will be given the opportunity to ask specific project‐related questions, as well 

as questions  that  relate  to  their departments’ needs and  concerns.   WCG has also  included within  the  initial 

project  budget  the  distribution,  collection,  and  review  of  a Management Questionnaire  designed  to  gather 

critical  information directly  from Department Heads  and  key management  level positions,  such  as perceived 

internal equity  issues, positions with excessive  turnover or recruitment problems, and other classification and 

compensation  challenges.    We  have  found  that  this  allows  us  to  further  tailor  our  approach  to  address 

classification and compensation inequities among the County’s various workgroups.  

As per  the RFP, employee and management  interviews may be  conducted as needed.   WCG anticipates  that 

interviews with  approximately  20%  of  job  titles  (45  interviews) would  be  sufficient  in  verifying  information 

submitted  in  JDQs,  addressing  challenging  classifications,  including  those with high  turnover  rates,  those  for 

which recruitment has been difficult, and those where clarification of minimum qualifications, knowledge, skills, 

and abilities is necessary.  Multiple incumbents within a single job title may attend one interview, ensuring that 

a representative number of employees are given the opportunity to participate.  Additionally, different job titles 

within a career family may attend “focus group” sessions to help clarify/confirm essential job functions, and to 

clearly delineate differences in job responsibilities.  WCG is committed to addressing issues of importance to the 

County  and will work with  the  Project Manager  and  Project  Team  to  schedule  the  interviews  necessary  to 

accomplish the anticipated Scope of Services. 

Develop and Implement a Job Evaluation System  

As per the RFP, one of the County’s objectives is to analyze, rank, and assign each job to the appropriate grade.  

WCG would recommend the development and implementation of a Point Factor Job Evaluation process to meet 

this objective.   We will work with  the County  to determine  the  specific  compensable  factors  (characteristics 

about jobs such as minimum qualifications and knowledge, skill, and ability requirements) and weights that will 

be used to establish the County’s internal relationships.  Compensable factors should be defensible, exist across 

departments, and be easily understood by employees.  The following are priority validated factors that WCG will 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 25 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

use during  this process and customized  to support  the operating environment and organizational structure of 

the County.   

 Formal Education 

 Experience 

 Management/Supervision 

 Human Collaboration 

 Freedom to Act 

 Technical Skills 

 Fiscal Responsibility 

 Working Conditions   

Based on information in the County’s job descriptions and/or completed JDQ, WCG will enter the values for each 

compensable  factor.   This  initial evaluation will be provided  to  the County’s Project Manager  for  review and 

feedback.  A Job Evaluation Team (JET), comprised of management‐level employees, will be convened to review 

these draft scores and the  initial placement of  jobs within the new classification system.   Once rating changes 

are  entered,  the  final  hierarchy will  reflect  both  sound  compensation  practices  and  the  County’s  collective 

organizational  values.    It  is  intended  that  this  hierarchy will  establish  relative  internal  equity  and  that  the 

compensation structure will be driven by market comparisons.      

It  is during  this phase of  the project  that WCG conducts an FLSA audit  to determine  if positions are properly 

categorized as exempt or Non‐Exempt.  The County can request specific positions to be reviewed, and WCG will 

also identify positions based on the content of completed JDQ, and supplemental questionnaires (as required).  

Reports will be provided for those positions for which changes are recommended.   

Salary, Benefits, and Pay Practices Survey 

This  phase  of  the  project  involves  determining  the  pay  opportunities  of  similar  positions  in  selected 

organizations  in  the County’s competitive market by collecting data  from  identified benchmark organizations, 

published surveys, and public employer compensation plans.   

The validity of survey data is dependent on sound survey techniques surrounding the following essential areas: 

 Benchmark  jobs that are representative of all County departments,  job  levels and  job families –WCG’s 

innovative survey processes enable us  to collect and analyze  information on a variety of positions  for 

comparative purposes.   Additionally, because  this project  activity  is  accomplished by  an  experienced 

compensation  professional  on WCG’s  staff,  the  County  can  have  full  confidence  in  the  accuracy  of 

information presented.       



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 26 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

o Method of Determining Quality Job Match:   WCG will develop (using the County’s existing job 

descriptions  and/or  completed  JDQ)  job  summaries,  which  ensure  matches  based  on  job 

content  and  minimum  qualifications  (as  opposed  to  matching  on  job  title  alone).    Each 

responding  organization  will  be  instructed  to  match  positions  based  on  this  information.  

Matches and data provided by benchmark organizations will be reviewed to ensure appropriate 

matching  and  additional  data,  including  job  descriptions  and  organizational  charts,  are 

requested when necessary. 

 Benchmark  organizations  that  are  representative  of  employers with whom  the  County  competes  for 

qualified employees.           

 Relevant published private  sector  survey data as an alternative approach  to  collecting more data  for 

comparison purposes.   As with all data, each data point will be analyzed  to determine  if  it  should be 

used  in  the  market  comparison  phase.    If  acceptable  matches  are  determined,  this  could  be  an 

acceptable source of additional information to use in future market updates, which helps decrease the 

administrative burden of collecting customized market data.        

WCG‘s professional compensation consultants will provide a report of  the survey results,  including charts and 

graphs comparing  the County  to  survey participants.   The  report will have  reports  in a  format of private and 

public separately and then combined, enabling the County to determine what data will be used  in developing 

the salary structures.  This detailed analysis will include, by survey job title, the participant matching titles, FLSA 

status,  degree  of  match  (to  the  County’s  job  summary),  full  or  part  time  status,  number  of  incumbents, 

geographic  (cost of  labor) differentials,  range minimum and maximum, as well as a number of statistical data 

points.   

In  addition  to  gathering  direct  pay  data  for  benchmark  positions,  WCG  will  collect  from  comparable 

organizations benefit offerings such as medical/dental/vision contributions,  life  insurance, disability  insurance, 

tuition assistance, and paid time off, as well as relevant pay practices.   WCG will work closely with the Project 

Team  in  identifying  the  specific  total  compensation  elements  to  be  collected  via  custom  and/or  published 

surveys.    One  the  responses  have  been  compiled,  WCG  will  make  recommendations  as  to  the  general 

competitiveness of the County and  identify areas for further consideration based on best/prevailing practices.  

This  information  is  also  important  in working with  the  Project  Team  and  County  leadership  in  finalizing  the 

appropriate competitive position relevant to the market data.   

Design of Updated Compensation Structure(s) 

After each surveyed job has been “priced “in the competitive market, WCG will develop salary structure(s) for all 

positions in the study.  WCG will work with the County’s Project Team to determine the appropriate number of 

pay structures based on the County’s stated needs and objectives.   

You  will  recall  that,  during  the  Project  Planning  and  Administration  Phase, WCG’s  professional  consultants 

conduct an audit of the County’s existing pay structure(s).   It  is during the design of new structures where the 

identified deficiencies will be addressed.  Design considerations to be incorporated into the structure(s) include: 

• Range spread (distance from minimum to maximum); 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 27 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

• Midpoint progression (difference in midpoint from one range to the next); 

• Integration of pay philosophies, market position, and the County’s financial resources; and, 

• Projecting potential growth, advancement, and recognition of performance through the pay 

structure(s). 

Once  the  appropriate  pay  grade  is  established,  an  analysis  of  each  employee’s  compa‐ratio  (relationship  to 

current  and  proposed midpoints) will  be  completed  to  determine  if  acceptable  range  penetration  has  been 

achieved and to address through implementation scenarios any identified compression problems.  Factors such 

as time in current position as well as an incumbent’s performance may be included in this analysis when data is 

available.  Using a standard set of criteria for evaluative purposes will assist in the identification of areas where 

internal salary relationships need attention.  WCG will work with the County to identify solutions and estimated 

project  budget  impact  in  order  to  resolve  identified  inequities.    For  our  initial  budget  projections, WCG  has 

included time to prepare up to three implementation scenarios.  The first will be the cost of bringing employees 

up to the proposed range minimum and the remaining may be used for time in position adjustments to address 

identified compression problems.   WCG will provide  in each  implementation  scenario extensive data on each 

employee, including: 

• The employee's current job title, grade, and base salary; 

• The exact position of each employee’s job title, grade, and base salary in the proposed structure; 

• The relationship of the employee's salary to the existing and proposed midpoint. 

Job Descriptions  

The information included in the customized JDQ and the final Job Evaluation scores can be used to develop 

comprehensive job descriptions for County positions that will include minimum education and experience 

requirements, essential job functions, knowledge, skills, abilities, working conditions, physical requirements, 

licenses and certifications, and other information required by the County.  WCG will prepare draft job 

descriptions based on the completed JDQ and Job Evaluation scores, as well as guidelines for review of the 

completed job descriptions for accuracy.  Because there is a detailed departmental review process before the 

completed JDQ are submitted to WCG, it has been our experience that the amount of feedback from 

Department managers is limited.  Once any feedback is received, analyzed, and incorporated into the job 

descriptions (as appropriate), final job descriptions will be provided to the County. 

Final Report 

For  the  County  to  effectively  maintain  and  administer  the  newly‐created  classification  and  compensation 

program,  it  is  necessary  to  develop  comprehensive  administration  guidelines.   With  this  in mind, WCG will 

prepare a Final Report.  The Final Report will include descriptions of the various project phases, contain relevant 

recommendations on adoption and  implementation of the pay system, and will discuss ongoing administrative 

guidelines.  This Report will also include an assessment or need for suggested changes based on our discussions, 

observations, and analysis throughout the project.  The Final Report will: 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 28 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

 Outline the methodology that was utilized in the study; 

 Define the compensation policy and objectives; and 

 Set forth procedures for maintaining the compensation system. 

To address item L in the Scope of Services, the review of current compensation ordinances with recommended 

changes, WCG will work with the County in customizing this report, as well as the accompanying administrative 

guidelines,  to  ensure  they  meet  the  County’s  expectations  regarding  internal  equity  and  external 

competitiveness,  and  that  all  recommendations  are  consistent  with  best  practices.    A  detailed  review  and 

analysis of the County’s ordinances and policies is not included, though it could be priced as an optional/variable 

service should the County anticipate that the successful firm will rewrite this manual.   Upon completion of the 

Final Report, WCG will prepare a comprehensive presentation of  the compensation  study  results  that will be 

given at a meeting to be determined by the County’s Project Manager.     

Ongoing Support 

For the initial 12 months following completion of the study, WCG will partner with the County in maintenance of 

the  classification  and  compensation  system.    Our  goal  in  offering  extended  support  is  to  demonstrate  our 

confidence in and commitment to the integrity of our product, and our strong desire to partner with the County 

on this most important project.  This support includes the following.   

 Addition of new positions in the classification plan; 

 Review  and  assistance  with  the  administrative  placement  of  existing  or  new  positions  due  to 

reorganizations, changes in essential functions, etc.; 

Review and  input of new  salary  survey data at  the end of  the 12 month period.   WCG  then will update  the 

newly‐developed compensation structure based on market data. 

 

TIMELINE  

 
CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION STUDY TIMELINE 

Project Phases 

Weeks 

1 2 3  4  5 6 7  8  9  10 11 12

1.  Project Planning and Administration.                         

2.  Employee and Management Communication Sessions.                         

3. Develop and Implement a Job Evaluation System.                         



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 29 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

4. Comprehensive Salary, Benefits, and Pay Practices Survey.                         

5.  Design of Updated Compensation Structure.                         

6.  Final Report.                         

 



© 2012-The Waters Consulting Group, Inc.                                                       PAGE 30 
 

THIS PROPOSAL CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF WCG, INC.   
THIS PROPOSAL IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY REASON WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF WCG, INC. 

 

SECTION D – COST PROPOSAL 
 

TOTAL  PROFESSIONAL  FEES    
BASED  ON  APPROXIMATELY  400  EMPLOYEES   IN  224  JOB  TITLES  

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION STUDY  PROFESSIONAL FEES 

1.  Project  Planning  and  Administration,  Including  Development  of  a  Compensation 
Philosophy.    

7,500.00

2.  Employee  and  Management  Communication  Sessions,  Including  Interviews/Focus 
Groups With Approximately 20% of the County’s Job Titles (45, As Required).     

12,000.00

3. Develop and Implement a Job Evaluation System, Including Required FLSA Reviews.    12,500.00

4.  Salary, Benefits, and Pay Policies Survey.                9,500.00

5.  Design of Updated Compensation Structure.                12,500.00

6.  Development of Job Descriptions.                24,000.00

7.  Final Report.                6,400.00

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES (project related expenses are additional and are billed at 
cost, including printing, shipping, travel, etc.)  

  $84,400.00 

Project‐Related Expenses (estimate)  

  $14,500.00 

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES AND PROJECT‐RELATED EXPENSES  

  $98,900.00 

 

OPTIONAL AND/OR VARIABLE SERVICES  Fees 

Additional work outside of scope of project, as approved in advance  $200.00 per hour 

Additional onsite meetings as ordered to meet with County officials, department 
directors, etc.,  

$1,500.00 per day 
plus expenses

Employee Appeals   $300.00 per appeal

 
 











































































PUBLIC
SECTOR
P E R S O N N E L
CONSULTANTS

COMMUNICATING
THE PROJECT
TO THE 
EMPLOYEES

C L A S S I F I C A T I O N  A N D  C O M P E N S A T I O N  P R O J E C T  P R O C E D U R E  G U I D E  S E R I E S

58835 Pamphlet.indd   1 10/16/08   8:52:27 AM



P U B L I C  S E C T O R  P E R S O N N E L  C O N S U L T A N T S

The factor that is most important 

in the development and effective 

implementation of a new or 

updated position classification 

and/or compensation plan is not 

the technical process, or even the 

amount of salary increases.  It is 

the extent to which employees 

understand the process by which 

the plan was developed, and their 

acceptance that it was a logical 

and fair process.

To assist you in determining and 

implementing the best systematic 

approach to the effective commu-

nication of the compensation plan 

for your organization, we have 

provided this booklet, parts of 

which are adaptations from the 

booklet: “COMMUNICATING 

COMPENSATION PROGRAMS- 

An Approach to Providing 

Information to Employees” from 

the American Compensation 

Association.

We have divided this section of the 

Guide into Pre-Project, Mid-Project 

and Post-Project segments. 

COMMUNICATING
THE PROJECT
TO THE EMPLOYEES

The maximum amount of information 
concerning the reasons for the project 
should be provided at the earliest 
possible date. There will already be 
a number of rumors floating around 
since some employees will have heard 
about the RFP preparation, consultant 
selection process, and project approval 
by the Council/Board.

Following are several pre-project 
communication activities which are 
essential to the successful conduct of 
a classification and/or compensation 
project.

1. Letter/Memo From the Chief 
Executive Officer
We suggest that every employee receive 
a letter or memo from the chief execu-
tive officer announcing the project 
(Figure 1), indicating the reasons for 
the project, its scope and process, the 
extent of employee participation, and a 
guarantee that no one’s salary amount 
will be reduced as a consequence of the 
project.

2. Project Briefings by Our Consultants 
We will conduct a briefing for every 
employee to explain the scope of the 
project, summarize the process we 
will utilize, explain their roles in the 
project, and respond to questions. A 
listing of the most frequently asked 
questions and our responses follows on 
page 5. At the completion of the Q and 
A period we will distribute the Position 
Description Questionnaire (PDQ) and 
provide an item-by-item explanation.

The briefings last 30 to 45 minutes, 
and can be scheduled at one-hour 
intervals. To ensure that attendance 
does not exceed the facility’s capacity, 
and that the departments can send 
their employees in shifts, we suggest 
the following:

• Schedule a minimum of two sessions, 
and more depending upon the number 
of employees to be briefed and the 
facility’s capacity.
• Control attendance by scheduling 
alphabetically by employees’ last names 
such as A-E 9:00am-10:00am; F-J 
10:00am-11:00am, etc.

3. Employee Opinion Survey on Salary 
Administration (OPTIONAL)
If you have requested it as a part of 
the total project, we will conduct our 
standard Confidential Employee Opin-
ion Survey on Salary Administration 
which will provide the employees the 
opportunity to communicate to you 
their primary concerns and opinions 
regarding the current classification 
and/or compensation plan. Participa-
tion is voluntary.

The survey is a multiple-choice ques-
tionnaire with space for comments. To 
maintain confidentiality, we admin-
ister the questionnaire immediately 
after the PDQ explanation and receive 
the completed questionnaires directly 
from the employees. We will give 
you extra questionnaires and self-ad-
dressed return envelopes to our office 
for employees who want to participate 
but could not attend the briefings.

A. PRE-PROJECT 
    EMPLOYEE 
    COMMUNICATION

-1-

58835 Pamphlet.indd   2 10/16/08   8:52:28 AM



P U B L I C  S E C T O R  P E R S O N N E L  C O N S U L T A N T S

I am very pleased to inform you that the City has contracted with a highly qualifi ed outside con-
sultant fi rm, Public Sector Personnel Consultants (PSPC), to update our position classifi cation 
and pay system to ensure that your position’s classifi cation refl ects its duties and responsibili-
ties, and that its salary range assignment is internally equitable and competitive within our em-
ployment markets.

PSPC consultants will conduct briefi ngs on the project for all employees, supervisors and de-
partment heads on Monday, April 14. Attendance is mandatory, and you will be informed of the 
location and time for your briefi ngs. The consultants will also distribute and explain a question-
naire to permit you to describe your duties and responsibilities in your own words. You will have 
one week to complete the questionnaire and return it to your supervisor.

PSPC consultants will be on-site during the later part of May to conduct individual job informa-
tion interviews with representative incumbents of every job classifi cation at their worksite, to 
provide you with an additional opportunity to explain the scope and complexity of your position. 
PSPC will provide recommendations as to the correct occupational job classifi cation and title 
for every position, and update our job descriptions from the information you have provided on 
your questionnaire and during the worksite interview. REMINDER: It is the position that is being 
studied and classifi ed, not the employee.

PSPC will also conduct a salary survey of the public and private employers in the local, regional, 
and national employment markets where we compete to obtain and retain high quality staff, and 
recommend a salary plan that is competitive with salaries paid for similar occupations in those 
employment markets. We cannot promise any salary increases, however, no salary will be 
reduced as a consequence of this project.

We anticipate that the project will be completed within approximately 120 days, and you will be 
notifi ed of any actions affecting your position’s classifi cation and salary range as soon as the 
City Council has reviewed the recommendations and adopted the updated plans.

I am very pleased that the City Council has authorized this study to update the internal equity an 
external competitiveness of our position classifi cation and salary plan. Please see the Human 
Resources staff if you have any questions.

            TO:        All City Employees, Supervisors, and Department Heads

     FROM:                                                , City Manager        DATE: 4/10/00

SUBJECT:     Position Classifi cation and Compensation Study

Memorandum

CITY OF
Offi ce of the City Manager

(Figure 1) Memorandum from the chief executive offi  cer announcing the project

-2-

58835 Pamphlet.indd   3 10/16/08   8:52:32 AM



P U B L I C  S E C T O R  P E R S O N N E L  C O N S U L T A N T S

method is to be developed and/or used to 
establish the internal job worth ranking of 
your various job classifications.

We suggest a minimum of a monthly com-
munication to the employees on the status 
of the project. There will be a normal level 
of anxiety among the employees which is 
to be expected when outsiders are making 
recommendations regarding job titles and 
pay ranges. Mid-project communications 
will reinforce each employee’s importance 
to the organization, emphasize the positive 
nature of the project, and lessen unwar-
ranted anxieties and concerns.

Following are several mid-project 
communication activities that will 
contribute to the successful conduct and 
implementation of the classification and/or 
compensation project.

1. Employee Newsletter Articles
If you have an established printed or video 
employee newsletter, we will provide you 
with information for articles that indicate 
the project activities completed to date, 
and the anticipated activities for the 
following month.

2. Project Information Bulletins
As an alternative to or supplement for 
newsletter articles, we suggest a special 
monthly or occasional bulletin to in-
form the employees of project activities 
completed to date, and the anticipated 
activities for the following month. Such a 
bulletin should be distributed to all em-
ployees, perhaps as a payroll stuffer, posted 
on bulletin boards, and disseminated by 
internal e-mail.

3. Employee Communication Task Force
This group should receive  a monthly brief-
ing on the project status, and be given the 
opportunity to ask questions about project 
issues that concern them or the employees. 
This dialogue will provide the employees 
with the latest and correct information, 
and provide important feedback to the 
project consultants which may be useful 

B. MID-PROJECT
    EMPLOYEE
    COMMUNICATION

C. POST-PROJECT
    EMPLOYEE
    COMMUNICATION

Several important considerations if you 
have selected this service.

• Extend the scheduling of the briefing ses-
sions intervals from one hour to 1 ½ hours.
• Provide a facility that is set up in class-
room style with tables, or chairs with 
writing arms, so that the employees can 
complete the questionnaires.
• Remind the employees to bring pencils or 
pens to the meeting, and provide these items 
for the employees who forget.

An essential component of an employee 
opinion survey process is feedback of 
the survey results, to maintain positive 
employee relations. Since it is the nature 
of this type of survey to solicit negative 
comments, you should carefully consider 
whether your organization’s culture is 
such that you can provide negative survey 
results feedback to the employees and the 
elected or appointed officials and Council/
Board members.

We will provide a report summarizing the 
statistical and narrative results, including 
all of the employee comments verbatim. 
We will modify the written comments to 
maintain the confidentiality of the respon-
dents and their departments, delete refer-
ences to named individuals or their jobs 
titles, and remove offensive language.

The method and extent of distribution and 
dissemination of the opinion survey report 
will be up to you.

4. Employee Communication Task Force
You can leverage pre-project and progress 
communication through a committee or 
task force of employees representing the 
various departments, occupational groups, 
and/or employee associations. We can 
provide more intensive and detailed brief-
ings for these individuals, whose role it 
will be to disseminate this information to 
their respective departments and employee 
groups.

This task force can also be utilized for sug-
gestions regarding procedural aspects of 
the project, such as determination of the 
employers to be included in the external 
compensation survey, and serving as the 
job evaluation task force if a point-factor 

in increasing the project’s quality and ac-
ceptance of the results.

4. Progress Reports for the Council/Board
We recommend that you provide a 
monthly summary of the project’s prog-
ress to the Council or Board, so that they 
remain informed and committed, and to 
assure them that they will make final deci-
sions regarding compensation policy and 
financial expenditures.

5. Project Inquiry “Hot-Line”
There may be occasions where this tech-
nique will be helpful in providing infor-
mation, dispelling rumors, and obtaining 
additional information on employee 
concerns about the project. These “hot 
lines” take the form of a specific dedicated 
phone number, or an e-mail address, for 
the duration of the project, which may be 
answered by a Human Resources repre-
sentative during working hours and an 
answering machine during other times, or 
an answering machine or e-mail address 
which is periodically checked for messages 
and responses provided to the callers.

Once the recommended position clas-
sification and/or compensation plan has 
been adopted by the Council/Board, you 
will be able to provide a large amount of 
information to the employees, in a variety 
of formats. Not all of the following activi-
ties will be appropriate, or affordable, for 
all circumstances. They are provided for 
you to select, or develop, the communica-
tion activities which are best suited to your 
organization.

1.Copies or Extracts From the Final Report
We suggest that you prepare for employee 
perusal a number of copies of our final 
report on the recommended classification 
and/or compensation plan, after its adop-
tion by the Council/Board. They could be 
made available for review in the Human 
Resources and/or line departments’ offices. 
You will probably receive a request for a 
copy of the report from the media.

-3-

58835 Pamphlet.indd   4 10/16/08   8:52:32 AM



P U B L I C  S E C T O R  P E R S O N N E L  C O N S U L T A N T S

The report’s table with the employee names 
and their actual salary amounts should be 
removed. Some of the material is techni-
cal and could be misinterpreted, such as 
market comparisons, and salary grade/
range allocations by multiple salary policy 
formulae if you utilize a point-factor job 
evaluation method, and you may want to 
consider publishing only the new salary 
grade/range-per job class listings.

2. Workshop for Supervisors
We recommend that you conduct a work-
shop for supervisors on all aspects of the 
new position classification and/or com-
pensation plan, for the purpose of pre-
paring them to explain the new plan and 
respond to questions will be a major factor 
in the employees’ positive attitude towards 
the new plans. Supervisors should then 
conduct employee meetings to explain the 
new plan and answer questions concerning 
its scope and effect.

This workshop is especially important if 
the new plan contains a new salary sched-
ule, with or without in-grade steps, and/
or the method of salary administration is 
to be changed from longevity to pay-for-
performance. The approach selected for 
the initial year’s implementation must be 
thoroughly explained and understood. The 
extent to which the supervisors under-
stand and support the new plan will be the 
essential factor to its successful implemen-
tation.

3. Classification and Compensation Plan 
Pamphlet
We recommend that you prepare an dis-
tribute to all employees, supervisors and 
managers, a pamphlet explaining the new 
position classification and/or compensa-
tion plan. The employees will obtain a 
greater depth of understanding, and retain 
the information for a longer period, from 
such written material.

The pamphlet can be used in a the super-
visory workshops, post-project employee 
briefings, and new employee orientation 
sessions. If a new performance evaluation 
system was a component of your project, 
a description of that system’s linkage to 
the pay plan should be included in the 
pamphlet. A separate pamphlet should be 
prepared explaining the scope and process 

of the new performance evaluation plan.

4. Employee Briefings
Briefings for all employees, conducted by 
the Human Resources staff, is one of the 
best methods to ensure that everyone ob-
tains accurate information about the new 
plans, and obtains answers to questions 
from an expert source. We recommend  a 
series of small group meetings to establish 
the best atmosphere for communication 
and understanding.

These meetings provide an excellent op-
portunity to distribute materials describing 
the new plans, such as a classification and 
compensation pamphlet, updated em-
ployee handbook, and updated personnel 
policy manual pages. If a video describing 
the new plans has been produced, that 
would be the introductory part of these 
briefings.

5. Salary Administration Video
A professionally produced video is not 
always necessary or affordable for very 
organization. It is however a very power-
ful tool for communicating the scope and 
components of the new plan in modern 
media which ascribes a high degree of 
state-of-the-art quality to the new plan. It 
is also included in new employee orienta-
tions. We have provided you with a sample 
copy of such a video.

The salary administration video is best 
suited for organizations with employees at 
many locations and on varying shifts, who 
can be shown the video at times that are 
convenient to their work hours. This video 
need not be costly if your organization has 
an internal video production capability or 
access to an educational institution or tele-
vision station who might produce video as 
a public service.

6. Update Employee Handbook and Per-
sonnel Policy Manual
We recommend that you update the sec-
tions of your Employee Handbook and 
Personnel Policy Manual that describe the 
position classification and compensation 
plan to reflect any changes required by the 
new plan. Those updated pages are excel-
lent handouts at the supervisory workshop 
and employee briefings.

7. Individual Salary Plan Implementation 
Statements
The employees need to be informed of 
the impact of the new plan on t heir base 
salary amount and salary opportunity. 
We recommend that each employee be 
provided with a personalized statement 
including the following information.

• Effective date of the new plan, and date of 
salary change if different

• Job class title of their position

• Salary grade/range number to which their 
position’s job class is allocated

• Minimum, Midpoint, and Maximum 
amounts of the salary grade/range.

• Salary amount prior to the effective date of 
the new plan

• Amount of increase to Minimum of the 
new grade/range, if applicable

• New salary amount according to the initial 
implementation protocol

• Relationship of new salary to the Midpoint 
of the grade/range (comparatio)

• Merit increase opportunity at various 
levels of future job performance

• Amount of supplemental pay, such as for 
longevity, assignments, certifications

• FLSA status and hourly rate for overtime

Following are the questions that employees 
most frequently ask us during the em-
ployee project briefing meetings, and our 
responses.

Q: 1. Who are we going to be compared 
to for salaries?

A: If the client has made this deter-
mination prior to the briefing meetings, 
we provide the names and locations of the 
employers to the employees. We also in-
dicate that not all jobs will be surveyed at 
all of the comparator employers, and that 

THE QUESTIONS MOST
COMMONLY ASKED BY 
EMPLOYEES

-4-

58835 Pamphlet.indd   5 10/16/08   8:52:33 AM



P U B L I C  S E C T O R  P E R S O N N E L  C O N S U L T A N T S

some may be compared only to local em-
ployers, while other jobs may be compared 
on a regional or national basis.

If the client has not yet determined who 
the comparator employers will be, we tell 
the employees that the process of identify-
ing the employers to be surveyed depends 
to a great extent on where the client is cur-
rently obtaining the majority of its employ-
ees and for which occupations. A second 
factor is the identification of employers 
to whom the client regularly loses current 
employees.

Q: 2. What will the Council/Board do 
with your report?

A:  We uniformly respond that we do 
not know what the client’s Council/Board 
will do with our report. We tell the em-
ployees that in the over 1,000 times that we 
have provided compensation services that 
we have experienced 98% implementation, 
and we have no indication that this project 
will be an exception.

We credit our 98% implementation record 
to the fact that, in our experience, employ-
ers do not plan projects, retain consultants, 
raise employee expectations, and expend 
funds, with the intention of doing nothing. 
The only modification we are sometimes 
requested to make to our original recom-
mendations is the option for a multi-year 
implementation plan if the cost to where 
the client wishes to place it’s salary policy 
exceeds the available funds.

Q: 3. Will we get to see a copy of the 
report, and when?

A:  Yes. We recommend that when 
the final report has been adopted by the 
Council/Board that it be made public 
and that extra copies be made available 
for perusal by the employees and depart-
ment heads. The reports may not contain 
the tables with specific salary amounts 
recommended for each employee, as that 
is confidential, but it will include the tables 
indicating the salary range dollars recom-
mended for each job classification.

Q: 4. When will the study be com-
pleted?

A: We provide this information in 
general terms, such as: “within ninety 
days.”

Q: 5. Will you make recommendations 
regarding (longevity, cost-of-living, benefits, 
etc.)

A:  We tell employees if a benefits 
analysis and which salary administration 
items are included in the scope of the 
project.

Q:  6. How much are you being paid for 
this study, and wouldn’t it be better if that 
money was given to the employees?

A: We anticipate this question by di-
viding the total project cost by the number 
of employees and providing the employees 
with a per-employee amount.

For example, if a project costs $45,000 
for 450 employees, the per employee cost 
would be $100. We tell the employees that 
if the client distributed the project cost 
to them, each employee would receive a 
one-time payment of $100, minus taxes, 
instead of a possible raise from the study, 
which might be more substantial, and 
which would be paid every year.

Q: 7. What will happen if the survey 
shows that a job classification is priced over 
the market rate?

A: The job classification will be 
allocated to the salary range that most 
closely matches the prevailing rate at the 
salary competitiveness policy selected by 
the employer, which may be lower (or the 
same, or higher) than the current salary 
range/grade. This will not impact the sal-
ary amount paid to an incumbent if that 
amount is within or above the new salary 
range for his/her position’s job class.

Q:  8. What will happen if an employ-
ee’s salary amount exceeds the Maximum 
of the new salary range/grade for their posi-
tion’s job class?

A:  No one’s salary will be reduced as 
a direct consequence of this project. There 
may be a few employees whose current 
base salary exceeds the Maximum of the 
new salary range/grade recommended 
for their position’s job classification. In 
such instances, the employee’s base salary 
amount will be not be reduced, but the 
amount will be frozen until such time as 
their position’s job class is re-allocated to a 
higher salary range/grade whose Maxi-
mum exceeds their current base salary 
amount.

Q:  9. Will salaries be increased?

A:  That is a determination to be made 
by the Council/Board on the basis of  their 
compensation philosophy, competitive-
ness policy, and the organization’s financial 
resources. We merely make recommenda-
tions. The  final decisions are 100% within 
the authority of the Council/Board. There 
is no guarantee that any salaries will be 
increased.

Depending upon the Council/Board’s final 
policy determination, a new salary plan 
may result in uneven increases during 
the initial implementation year, resulting 
from the need to bring the salaries of all 
individuals to the Minimum of the salary 
range/grade, take into account each indi-
vidual’s current position in the new salary 
range and possibly their varying length of 
service.

Q:  10. Who will be selected for the 
job information interviews, and how is the 
selection made?

A: Unless every employee is to 
receive a job information interview at 
their work site, the minimum number of 
interviews is one representative incumbent 
of each occupational job classification. We 

-5-

58835 Pamphlet.indd   6 10/16/08   8:52:33 AM



P U B L I C  S E C T O R  P E R S O N N E L  C O N S U L T A N T S

will make the interview selection at ran-
dom. If an employee is the only incumbent 
of a job class, that person will be scheduled 
for an interview.

Q: 11. What if my supervisor does not 
agree with what I wrote on the Position 
Description Questionnaire (PDQ)?

A: Supervisors are not permitted 
to change anything that an employee has 
written on their PDQ. The purpose of 
the supervisory review of the PDQ is to 
ensure that its content accurately reflects 
the duties and responsibilities performed 
by the incumbent, to the extent that the 
consultants can readily determine its oc-
cupational classification. If the supervisors 
do not agree with any part of the PDQ 
content, they may comment and indicate 
their opinions.

In virtually all of the instances where we 
see supervisory comments (approx. 2% 
- 5% of the PDQs) they indicate that the 
employee has forgotten to mention an 
important item, or they may differ on the 
percentages of the position the employee 
has allocated to its major functions. No 
one is an expert in completing a PDQ 
about their position, and it is quite com-
mon to forget an essential item.

We will communicate with both the em-
ployee and supervisor in the rare instances 
of significant difference of opinion regard-
ing a position’s job content, and form an 
independent opinion.

Q:  12. Will there be changes in job 
titles and classifications?

A: That is a distinct possibility. Our 
task is to make sure that each position’s 
job classification and the job class titles 
reflect current duties and responsibilities. 
It is possible that some positions may be 
re-allocated to a different job classification 
if their duties and responsibilities are now 
more commensurate with another than 
their current job class.

We may recommend that some job class 
titles be changed to more accurately reflect 
their occupations, to account for more or 
less job classes within a sequential group, 
or to recognize new occupational assign-
ments.

Q:13. What if I do not agree with your 
classification of my position?

A:  Our response will depend on 
whether the client’s rules and/or the scope 
of the project permit employee appeals 
to their position’s recommended clas-
sification. If they do not, we will indicate 
that every position’s classification will be 
reviewed with the respective department 
head for errors and that changes may be 
made in our initial recommendations.

If appeals are permitted, we inform the 
employees that they will be notified by 
their employer of our initial occupational 
job classification recommendation for 
their position, after the quality control 
reviews with the department heads. If 
they feel that we have made an error and 
that significant job content information 
has been overlooked, they may complete 
a form and request that we conduct a 
second review and notify the client of our 
final recommendation for each appealed 
position.

NOTE: We stress to the employees that the 
appeal process relates only to the occupa-
tional job classification and titles of posi-
tions, not salary range/grade assignments.

-6-

58835 Pamphlet.indd   7 10/16/08   8:52:33 AM














































































































	HR Packet w agenda
	Agenda
	Item 7 Minutes
	Item 9a RFP Compensation Study
	Item 9bi Carlson Dettman Consulting
	Item 9bii The Waters Consulting Group
	Item 9biii Public Sector Personnel Consultants
	Item 13 Retirement Recognitions
	Item 14 HR0210
	Item 15 Ordinance - Civil Service
	Item 16 Notice of Amendment
	Item 18 Personnel Ordinance amendment
	Item 19 Report
	Item 20 Meeting Schedule


	HR Packet Additions.pdf
	0616_001.pdf
	2
	3




